CINCINNATI BELL INC Form 10-Q October 31, 2008 Table of Contents

# UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

**WASHINGTON, D.C. 20549** 

# **FORM 10-Q**

X	QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
Fo	r the Quarterly Period Ended September 30, 2008
	TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE
	ACT OF 1934
Fo	r the transition period from to
	Commission File Number 1-8519

CINCINNATI BELL INC.

# Edgar Filing: CINCINNATI BELL INC - Form 10-Q

Ohio (State of Incorporation)

31-1056105

(I.R.S. Employer Identification No.)

221 East Fourth Street, Cincinnati, Ohio 45202

(Address of principal executive offices) (Zip Code)

(513) 397-9900

(Registrant s telephone number, including area code)

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days. Yes x No "

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer or a smaller reporting company. See definitions of large accelerated filer, accelerated filer and smaller reporting company in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act:

Large accelerated filer x Accelerated filer "
Non-accelerated filer "
Smaller reporting company "

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act). Yes "No x

At October 15, 2008, there were 230,401,442 common shares outstanding and 155,250 shares of 63/4% Cumulative Convertible Preferred Stock outstanding.

Form 10-Q Part I Cincinnati Bell Inc.

# TABLE OF CONTENTS

Description	PART I. Financial Information	Page
Item 1.	Financial Statements Condensed Consolidated Statements of Operations (Unaudited) Three Months and Nine Months Ended September 30, 2008 and 2007	1
	Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets (Unaudited) September 30, 2008 and December 31, 2007	2
	Condensed Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows (Unaudited) Nine Months Ended September 30, 2008 and 2007	3
	Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements (Unaudited)	4
Item 2.	Management s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations	23
Item 3.	Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk	31
Item 4.	Controls and Procedures	32
	PART II. Other Information	
Item 1.	<u>Legal Proceedings</u>	33
Item 1A.	Risk Factors	33
Item 2.	Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds	34
Item 3.	Defaults Upon Senior Securities	34
Item 4.	Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders	34
Item 5.	Other Information	34
Item 6.	<u>Exhibits</u>	35
	<u>Signatures</u>	36

Form 10-Q Part I Cincinnati Bell Inc.

## CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

(Dollars in millions, except per share amounts)

(Unaudited)

	Three Mor Septem 2008		Nine Montl Septemb 2008	
Revenue				
Services	\$ 301.8	\$ 289.6	\$ 899.0	\$ 860.1
Products	44.7	54.7	147.2	128.5
Total revenue	346.5	344.3	1,046.2	988.6
Costs and expenses				
Cost of services, excluding items below	108.8	103.2	321.6	302.9
Cost of products sold, excluding items below	46.0	55.8	152.0	134.6
Selling, general and administrative	71.5	65.3	213.8	196.6
Depreciation	37.6	36.8	110.1	108.2
Amortization	1.1	0.9	3.6	2.6
Restructuring charges (gains)	1.7	(0.3)	27.1	2.3
Asset impairment			1.2	
Total operating costs and expenses	266.7	261.7	829.4	747.2
Operating income	79.8	82.6	216.8	241.4
Interest expense	35.0	38.0	106.1	117.1
Other expense (income), net	(1.0)	0.2	(2.4)	(2.1)
Income before income taxes	45.8	44.4	113.1	126.4
Income tax expense	19.2	18.7	48.0	54.0
Net income	26.6	25.7	65.1	72.4
Preferred stock dividends	2.6	2.6	7.8	7.8
Net income applicable to common shareowners	\$ 24.0	\$ 23.1	\$ 57.3	\$ 64.6
Posis comings nor common shows	¢ 0.10	¢ 0.00	\$ 0.24	\$ 0.26
Basic earnings per common share	\$ 0.10	\$ 0.09	\$ 0.24	\$ 0.26
Diluted earnings per common share	\$ 0.10	\$ 0.09	\$ 0.23	\$ 0.25
Weighted average common shares outstanding (in millions)				
Basic	233.7	247.6	240.6	247.3
Diluted	239.2	257.2	247.0	256.6
Diluted	239.2	431.4	∠ <del>¬</del> / .0	250.0

Form 10-Q Part I Cincinnati Bell Inc.

## CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(Dollars in millions, except share amounts)

## (Unaudited)

	Sep	otember 30, 2008	Dec	ember 31, 2007
Assets				
Current assets				
Cash and cash equivalents	\$	8.0	\$	26.1
Receivables, less allowances of \$17.9 and \$17.1		177.3		176.5
Inventory, materials and supplies		31.4		31.2
Deferred income tax benefits, net		73.3		72.8
Prepaid expenses and other current assets		12.7		11.1
Total current assets		302.7		317.7
Property, plant and equipment, net		1,003.1		933.7
Goodwill		71.4		62.4
Intangible assets, net		127.3		121.2
Deferred income tax benefits, net		467.9		523.4
Other noncurrent assets		51.0		61.2
		0.010		0 - 1 -
Total assets	\$	2,023.4	\$	2,019.6
		,	·	,
Liabilities and Shareowners Deficit				
Current liabilities				
Current portion of long-term debt	\$	9.7	\$	7.8
Accounts payable	Ψ	102.2	Ψ	105.5
Unearned revenue and customer deposits		46.2		47.4
Accrued taxes		19.4		15.2
Accrued interest		27.3		49.4
Accrued payroll and benefits		42.4		44.8
Other current liabilities		49.0		47.5
Other Current Habilities		49.0		41.3
m . 1		206.2		217.6
Total current liabilities		296.2		317.6
Long-term debt, less current portion		1,980.8		2,001.9
Accrued pension and postretirement benefits		321.0		291.7
Other noncurrent liabilities		84.9		76.0
Total liabilities		2,682.9		2,687.2
Total habilities		2,002.9		2,007.2
Shareowners deficit				
Preferred stock, 2,357,299 shares authorized, 155,250 shares (3,105,000 depositary shares) of 6 <sup>3</sup> /4%				
Cumulative Convertible Preferred Stock issued and outstanding at September 30, 2008 and				
December 31, 2007; liquidation preference \$1,000 per share (\$50 per depositary share)		129.4		129.4
Common shares, \$.01 par value; 480,000,000 shares authorized; 256,942,260 and 256,652,787 shares				
issued; 231,741,442 and 248,357,332 outstanding at September 30, 2008 and December 31, 2007		2.6		2.6
Additional paid-in capital		2,919.6		2,922.7
Accumulated deficit		(3,394.0)		(3,459.1)
		(0,0) 110)		(5, .5).1)

# Edgar Filing: CINCINNATI BELL INC - Form 10-Q

Accumulated other comprehensive loss	(100.8)	(115.9)
Common shares in treasury, at cost: 25,200,818 and 8,295,455 shares at September 30, 2008 and		
December 31, 2007	(216.3)	(147.3)
Total shareowners deficit	(659.5)	(667.6)
Total liabilities and shareowners deficit	\$ 2,023.4	\$ 2,019.6

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the condensed consolidated financial statements.

Form 10-Q Part I Cincinnati Bell Inc.

## CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(Dollars in millions)

(Unaudited)

	Nine Mon Septem 2008	
Cash flows from operating activities		
Net income	\$ 65.1	\$ 72.4
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities		
Depreciation	110.1	108.2
Amortization	3.6	2.6
Provision for loss on receivables	13.9	11.2
Noncash interest expense	3.7	3.9
Deferred income tax expense, including valuation allowance change	46.2	49.5
Pension and other postretirement expense in excess of payments	53.1	19.5
Other, net	1.6	2.5
Changes in operating assets and liabilities, net of effects of acquisitions		
Increase in receivables	(12.7)	(21.3)
Increase in inventory, materials, supplies, prepaids and other current assets	(1.4)	(16.8)
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable	(1.8)	19.7
Decrease in accrued and other current liabilities	(22.6)	(39.0)
Decrease in other long-term assets	2.0	0.6
Increase (decrease) in other long-term liabilities	5.5	(3.7)
Net cash provided by operating activities  Cash flows from investing activities	266.3	209.3
Capital expenditures	(158.7)	(152.4)
Acquisitions of businesses	(21.6)	(4.6)
Other, net	1.0	(0.7)
	4-0.0	
Net cash used in investing activities	(179.3)	(157.7)
Cash flows from financing activities		
Issuance of long-term debt	3.0	75.0
Increase in corporate credit facility, net	25.0	40.0
Repayment of debt	(57.4)	(211.2)
Issuance of common shares exercise of stock options	0.3	2.3
Preferred stock dividends	(7.8)	(7.8)
Common stock repurchase	(67.5)	
Other, net	(0.7)	(2.0)
Net cash used in financing activities	(105.1)	(103.7)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents	(18.1)	(52.1)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year	26.1	79.4

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period

\$ 8.0

\$ 27.3

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the condensed consolidated financial statements.

3

Form 10-Q Part I Cincinnati Bell Inc.

#### NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDITED)

#### 1. Description of Business and Accounting Policies

The following represents a summary of the business and accounting policies of Cincinnati Bell Inc. and its consolidated subsidiaries (the Company ). A more detailed presentation can be found in the Company s 2007 Annual Report on Form 10-K.

**Description of Business** The Company provides diversified telecommunications services through businesses in three segments: Wireline, Wireless and Technology Solutions. Refer to Note 8 for further discussion concerning the Company s segments.

**Basis of Presentation** The Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company have been prepared pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) and, in the opinion of management, include all adjustments necessary for a fair presentation of the results of operations, financial position, and cash flows for each period presented.

The adjustments referred to above are of a normal and recurring nature. Certain information and footnote disclosures normally included in financial statements prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America have been condensed or omitted pursuant to SEC rules and regulations.

The Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheet as of December 31, 2007 was derived from audited financial statements, but does not include all disclosures required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. These Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements should be read in conjunction with the Company's 2007 Annual Report on Form 10-K. Operating results for the three and nine month periods ended September 30, 2008 are not necessarily indicative of the results expected in the subsequent quarter or for the year ending December 31, 2008.

**Income Taxes** The Company and its subsidiaries file income tax returns in the U.S. federal jurisdiction and various state and local jurisdictions. With a few exceptions, the Company is no longer subject to U.S. federal, state or local examinations for years before 2004. The IRS has completed its examination of the 2004 and 2005 tax years while 2006 is still under audit.

At September 30, 2008 and December 31, 2007, the Company had an unrecognized tax benefit liability of \$15.0 million and \$14.8 million, respectively. The total amount of unrecognized tax benefits that, if recognized, would affect the effective tax rate is \$14.8 million. The Company does not currently anticipate that the amount of unrecognized tax benefits will change significantly over the next year.

The Company recognizes accrued penalties related to unrecognized tax benefits in income tax expense. The Company recognizes accrued interest related to unrecognized tax benefits in interest expense. Accrued interest and penalties are insignificant at September 30, 2008 and December 31, 2007.

Regulatory Taxes The Company incurs federal regulatory taxes on certain revenue producing transactions. The Company is permitted to recover certain of these taxes by billing the customer; however, collections cannot exceed the amount due to the federal regulatory agency. These federal regulatory taxes are presented in sales and cost of services on a gross basis because, while the Company is required to pay the tax, it is not required to collect the tax from customers. The amount recorded as revenue for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2008 was \$4.4 million and \$12.3 million, respectively, and for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2007 was \$5.0 million and \$14.1 million, respectively. The amount expensed for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2008 was \$4.9 million and \$12.6 million, respectively, and for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2007 was \$5.0 million and \$14.4 million, respectively. The Company records all other taxes collected from customers on a net basis.

Form 10-Q Part I Cincinnati Bell Inc.

**Stock-Based Compensation** The Company values all share-based payments to employees at fair value on the date of grant and expenses this value over the applicable vesting period. The Company s policy for graded vesting awards is to recognize compensation expense on a straight-line basis over the vesting period. For all share-based payments, an assumption is made for an estimated forfeiture rate based on the historical behavior of employees. The Company s practice has generally been to make its annual grant of stock options and time-based restricted awards in December and annual performance-based awards in the first quarter. In addition, the Company also has historically granted a smaller number of stock-based awards at various times during the year for directors, new employees, promotions and performance achievements.

**Recently Issued Accounting Standards** Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 157, Fair Value Measurements, was issued in September 2006. The objective of the Statement is to define fair value, establish a framework for measuring fair value and expand disclosures about fair value measurements. The Company has adopted the provisions of SFAS No. 157 related to financial instruments as of January 1, 2008. Per FASB Staff Position 157-2, Effective Date of FASB Statement No. 157, implementation of SFAS No. 157 to non-financial assets and liabilities has been deferred until interim and annual periods beginning after November 15, 2008.

SFAS No. 157 establishes a three-tier fair value hierarchy, which prioritizes the inputs used in measuring fair value as follows:

Level 1 Observable inputs such as quoted prices in active markets;

Level 2 Inputs include quoted prices for similar assets and liabilities in active markets, quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in markets that are not active, inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability (i.e., interest rates, yield curves, etc.), and inputs that are derived principally from or corroborated by observable market data by correlation or other means (market corroborated inputs); and

Level 3 Unobservable inputs that reflect the Company s determination of assumptions that market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability. These inputs are developed based on the best information available, including the Company s own data.

At September 30, 2008, the fair value of the Company s financial instruments that are required to be measured at fair value on a recurring basis are as follows:

	September 30,			
(dollars in millions)	2008	Level 1	Level 2	Level 3
Interest rate swap agreements	\$ 4.9	\$	\$ 4.9	\$
Money market funds	5.8	5.8		

SFAS No. 160, Noncontrolling Interests in Consolidated Financial Statements—an amendment of ARB No. 51, was issued in December 2007. SFAS No. 160 clarifies the classification of noncontrolling interests in consolidated statements of financial position and the accounting for and reporting of transactions between the reporting entity and holders of such noncontrolling interests. Under SFAS No. 160: (a) noncontrolling interests are considered equity and should be reported as an element of consolidated equity; (b) net income will encompass the total income of all consolidated subsidiaries; (c) there will be separate disclosure on the face of the income statement of the attribution of income between the controlling and noncontrolling interests; and (d) increases and decreases in the noncontrolling ownership interest amount will be accounted for as equity transactions. SFAS No. 160 will be effective for the first fiscal year beginning on or after December 15, 2008, and earlier application is prohibited. SFAS No. 160 is required to be adopted prospectively, except for reclassifying noncontrolling interests to equity, separate from the parent s shareholders—equity, in the consolidated statement of financial position and recasting consolidated net income (loss) to include net income (loss) attributable to both the controlling and noncontrolling interests, both of which are required to be adopted retrospectively. The Company has not yet assessed the impact of this Statement on the Company's financial statements.

SFAS No. 141(R), Business Combinations, was issued in December 2007. SFAS No. 141(R) requires that upon initially obtaining control, an acquirer will recognize 100% of the fair values of acquired assets, including goodwill, and assumed liabilities, with only limited exceptions, even if the acquirer has not acquired 100% of its target. Additionally, contingent consideration arrangements will be presented at fair value at the acquisition date and included on that basis in the purchase price consideration, and transaction costs will be expensed as incurred. SFAS No. 141(R) also modifies the recognition for preacquisition contingencies, such as environmental or legal issues, restructuring plans and acquired research and development value in purchase accounting. SFAS No. 141(R) amends SFAS No. 109, Accounting for Income Taxes, to require the acquirer to recognize changes in the amount of its deferred tax benefits that are recognizable because of a business combination

# Edgar Filing: CINCINNATI BELL INC - Form 10-Q

either in income from continuing operations in the period of the combination

5

Form 10-Q Part I Cincinnati Bell Inc.

or directly in contributed capital, depending on the circumstances. SFAS No. 141(R) is effective for the first fiscal year beginning after December 15, 2008. The Company has not yet assessed the impact of this Statement on the Company s financial statements.

SFAS No. 161, Disclosures about Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities, was issued in March 2008. SFAS No. 161 amends and expands the disclosure requirements of SFAS No. 133, Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities, with the intent to provide users of financial statements with an enhanced understanding of: (a) how and why an entity uses derivative instruments; (b) how derivative instruments and related hedged items are accounted for under SFAS No. 133 and its related interpretations; and (c) how derivative instruments and related hedged items affect an entity s financial position, financial performance and cash flows. SFAS No. 161 requires qualitative disclosures about objectives and strategies for using derivatives, quantitative disclosures about fair value amounts of and gains and losses on derivative instruments and disclosures about credit-risk-related contingent features in derivative instruments. SFAS No. 161 is effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years and interim periods beginning after November 15, 2008. As this Statement relates only to disclosure, it will not have a financial impact on the Company.

SFAS No. 162, The Hierarchy of Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP), was issued in May 2008. SFAS No. 162 reorganizes the GAAP hierarchy to provide a consistent framework for determining the accounting principles that should be used when preparing U.S. GAAP financial statements. SFAS No. 162 is effective 60 days following the SEC s approval of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board amendments to AU Section 411, The Meaning of Present Fairly in Conformity with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles. The adoption of SFAS No. 162 is not expected to have any impact on the Company s consolidated results of operations and financial position.

In June 2008, the FASB issued Staff Position No. EITF 03-6-1, Determining Whether Instruments Granted in Share-Based Payment Transactions Are Participating Securities (FSP EITF 03-6-1). FSP EITF 03-6-1 concludes that unvested share-based payment awards that contain rights to receive non-forfeitable dividends or dividend equivalents (whether paid or unpaid) are participating securities, and thus, should be included in the two-class method of computing earnings per share. FSP EITF 03-6-1 is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2008, and interim periods within those years. Retrospective application to all periods presented is required and early application is prohibited. The Company has not yet assessed the impact of FSP EITF 03-6-1 on the Company s financial statements.

#### 2. Acquisitions of Businesses

CenturyTel

In June 2008, the Company purchased the Dayton, Ohio operations of CenturyTel for a purchase price of \$1.5 million, which was primarily allocated to property, plant and equipment. The purchase includes access lines to small and medium-size customers and fiber network throughout the Dayton metro area. The Company funded the purchase with its available cash. The financial results have been included in the Wireline segment and were immaterial to the Company s financial statements for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2008. The preliminary purchase price allocation for this transaction may be adjusted upon the completion of the Company s valuation of the related assets and liabilities of the business.

eGIX Inc.

In February 2008, the Company purchased eGIX Inc. (eGIX), a competitive local exchange carrier provider of voice and long distance services to business customers in Indiana and Illinois, for \$18.1 million and contingent consideration up to \$5.2 million. The Company funded the purchase with its Corporate credit facility. The purchase price was primarily allocated to goodwill for \$9 million, customer relationship intangible assets for \$5 million, and property, plant and equipment for \$5 million. The Company anticipates both the goodwill and intangible assets to be fully deductible for tax purposes. The financial results have been included in the Wireline segment and were immaterial to the Company s financial statements for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2008. The preliminary purchase price allocation for this transaction may be adjusted upon completion of the Company s valuation of the related assets and liabilities of the business.

Table of Contents 12

6

Form 10-Q Part I Cincinnati Bell Inc.

#### 3. Earnings Per Common Share

Basic earnings per common share (EPS) is based upon the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the period. Diluted EPS reflects the potential dilution that would occur if common stock equivalents were exercised or converted to common stock but only to the extent that they are considered dilutive to the Company s earnings. The following table is a reconciliation of the numerators and denominators of the basic and diluted EPS computations for the following periods:

	Three Months Ended September 30,			30,	September 30,			
(in millions, except per share amounts)	20	008	- 2	2007	2008	2007		
Numerator:								
Net income	\$	26.6	\$	25.7	\$ 65.1	\$ 72.4		
Preferred stock dividends		2.6		2.6	7.8	7.8		
Numerator for basic and diluted EPS	\$	24.0	\$	23.1	\$ 57.3	\$ 64.6		
Denominator:								
Denominator for basic EPS weighted average common shares outstanding	2	233.7		247.6	240.6	247.3		
Warrants		3.7		7.2	4.6	7.1		
Stock-based compensation arrangements		1.8		2.4	1.8	2.2		
Denominator for diluted EPS	2	239.2		257.2	247.0	256.6		
Basic earnings per common share	\$	0.10	\$	0.09	\$ 0.24	\$ 0.26		
Diluted earnings per common share	\$	0.10	\$	0.09	\$ 0.23	\$ 0.25		
Potentially issuable common shares excluded from denominator for diluted EPS due to anti-dilutive effect		40.0		33.9	39.1	34.1		

## 4. Comprehensive Income

		nths Ended aber 30,		nths Ended nber 30,
(dollars in millions)	2008	2007	2008	2007
Net income	\$ 26.6	\$ 25.7	\$ 65.1	\$ 72.4
Amortization of pension and postretirement costs, net of taxes	1.2	2.5	4.5	10.1
Remeasurement of pension and postretirement liabilities, net of taxes		46.0	10.6	46.0
Comprehensive income	\$ 27.8	\$ 74.2	\$ 80.2	\$ 128.5

Form 10-Q Part I Cincinnati Bell Inc.

#### 5. Debt and Financial Instruments

The Company s debt consists of the following:

(dollars in millions)	Sep	September 30, 2008		ember 31, 2007
Current portion of long-term debt:				
Credit facility, Tranche B Term Loan	\$	4.0	\$	4.0
Capital lease obligations and other debt		5.7		3.8
Current portion of long-term debt		9.7		7.8
Long-term debt, less current portion:				
Credit facility, revolver		80.0		55.0
Credit facility, Tranche B Term Loan		204.0		207.0
7 <sup>1</sup> /4% Senior Notes due 2013		465.2		470.5
8 <sup>3</sup> / <sub>o</sub> % Senior Subordinated Notes due 2014*		585.5		637.4
7% Senior Notes due 2015*		251.4		250.6
7 <sup>1</sup> /4% Senior Notes due 2023		50.0		50.0
Accounts receivable securitization facility		78.0		75.0
Various Cincinnati Bell Telephone notes		230.0		230.0
Capital lease obligations and other debt		36.2		25.8
		1,980.3		2,001.3
Net unamortized premiums		0.5		0.6
Long-term debt, less current portion		1,980.8		2,001.9
Total debt	\$	1,990.5	\$	2,009.7

For the three and nine months ended September 30, 2008, the Company purchased and extinguished \$5.3 million of  $7^{1}_{4}\%$  Senior Notes due 2013. The Company also purchased and extinguished \$11.2 million and \$52.8 million of  $8^{3}_{8}\%$  Senior Subordinated Notes due 2014 during the three and nine months ended September 30, 2008, respectively. The Company recognized a gain on extinguishment of debt of \$0.9 million and \$2.2 million, respectively, for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2008, which is included in Other expense (income), net on the Condensed Consolidated Statements of Operations.

The Company has recorded capital lease assets and capital lease obligations in non-cash transactions totaling \$11 million during 2008.

In March 2007, the Company and certain subsidiaries entered into an accounts receivable securitization facility. Under the receivables facility, certain subsidiaries sell their respective trade receivables on a continuous basis to CB Funding LLC ( CBF ). Although CBF is a wholly-owned consolidated subsidiary of the Company, CBF is legally separate from the Company and each of the Company s other subsidiaries. Upon and after the sale or contribution of the accounts receivable to CBF, such accounts receivable are legally assets of CBF, and as such are not available to creditors of other subsidiaries or the parent company.

The Company s \$250 million revolving credit facility is funded by 16 financial institutions, which limits the Company s counterparty risk. No financial institution has a funding commitment for more than 10% of the total facility. The Company s counterparty exposure related to the interest rate swaps detailed below is limited to the unrealized gains on the interest rate swaps, which totaled \$4.9 million at September 30, 2008,

<sup>\*</sup> The face amount of these notes has been adjusted for the fair value of interest rate swaps classified as fair value derivatives at September 30, 2008 and December 31, 2007.

# Edgar Filing: CINCINNATI BELL INC - Form 10-Q

and realized gains not yet received.

8

Form 10-Q Part I Cincinnati Bell Inc.

The Company is exposed to the impact of interest rate fluctuations on its indebtedness. The Company attempts to maintain an optimal balance of fixed rate and variable rate indebtedness in order to attain low overall borrowing costs over time while mitigating exposure to interest rate fluctuations. The Company uses derivative financial instruments to manage its balance of fixed rate and variable rate indebtedness. In 2004 and 2005, the Company entered into long-term interest rate swaps with notional amounts totaling \$450 million to change the fixed rate nature of a portion of the 7% Notes and the  $8\,^3/_8\%$  Notes to floating rate debt ( long-term interest rate swaps ). These long-term interest rate swaps qualify for fair value hedge accounting. As of September 30, 2008 and December 31, 2007, the fair value of these interest rate swap contracts was an asset of \$4.8 million and \$2.9 million, respectively, for which the Company s underlying hedged debt is adjusted by the same corresponding value in accordance with SFAS No. 133.

In May 2008, the Company entered into six-month interest rate swap contracts with notional amounts totaling \$450 million, which effectively fixed the floating interest rates for the second half of 2008 on the long-term interest rate swaps. The Company did not designate these swaps as hedging instruments under SFAS No. 133, which results in the change in the fair value of these instruments being recognized in earnings during each period. At September 30, 2008, the fair value of these interest rate swap contracts was an asset of \$0.2 million with the corresponding value included in Other expense (income), net in the Condensed Consolidated Statements of Operations.

In July 2008, the Company entered into additional six-month interest rate swap contracts with notional amounts totaling \$450 million, which effectively fixed the floating interest rates in the first half of 2009 on the long-term interest rate swaps. The Company elected not to designate these swaps as hedging instruments under SFAS No. 133, which results in the change in the fair value of these instruments being recognized in earnings during each period. At September 30, 2008, the fair value of these interest rate swap contracts was a liability of \$0.1 million with the corresponding value included in Other expense (income), net in the Condensed Consolidated Statements of Operations.

### 6. Restructuring Charges

Restructuring reserve Balance			Balance Balance								Balance					
December 31,			March 31, June 30,								Se	eptember	: 30,			
(dollars in millions):		2007	Income	Expens	eUtilization	s 20	800	Ex	penseUtili	zations	2008	Expen	seUtil	izations	2008	
2007-2008 plan	\$	22.9	\$ (14.4)	\$	\$ (0.2	) \$	8.3	\$	0.1 \$	(0.1)	\$ 8.3	\$ 0.	1 \$	(0.3)	\$ 8.	.1
2001 plan		6.2		0.1	(0.2	)	6.1		0.1	(0.3)	5.9	0.	1	(0.2)	5.8	.8
2007-2008 Restructuring																

In the fourth quarter of 2007, the Company announced a restructuring plan to reduce costs and increase operational efficiencies. As a result, the Company incurred restructuring charges totaling \$37.5 million for the three months ended December 31, 2007 and \$26.9 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2008 composed of the following:

Employee separation benefits In the fourth quarter of 2007, the Company determined a need to reduce its headcount over the next five years to conform its Wireline operations to the decreased access lines being served by the Company. In the fourth quarter of 2007, the Company recorded severance liabilities of \$22.9 million, based on the Company s probable and estimable liabilities under its written severance plans, to reduce headcount to planned levels. The number of employees included in the severance liability as of December 31, 2007 was reduced for management retirements to occur as a result of the special termination pension and postretirement benefits accepted as of December 31, 2007. However, the union retirements to occur as a result of the special termination pension and postretirement benefits agreed to in the first quarter of 2008 were not considered in calculating the December 31, 2007 severance liability because this agreement did not occur until after December 31, 2007. As a result of 284 union employees accepting the special termination benefits in the first quarter of 2008, expense for special termination pension and postretirement benefits increased by \$22.1 million in the first quarter of 2008, but caused an offsetting reduction to the number of employees to be terminated through severance, and reduced the Company s severance liability by \$14.4 million. The Company accrued an additional \$0.1 million in both the second quarter and the third quarter of 2008 for the 2007-2008 plan. The effects of employee separation benefits are included in the table above. All special termination pension and postretirement benefits and curtailments presented below are included in the pension and postretirement footnote (Note 7) that follows or Note 9 to the consolidated financial statements included in the 2007 Annual Report on Form 10-K.

9

Form 10-Q Part I Cincinnati Bell Inc.

Special termination pension and postretirement benefits The Company offered and, by December 31, 2007, 105 management employees accepted special termination benefits totaling \$12 million. The Company determined that \$8.2 million of these benefits had been earned through December 31, 2007 under SFAS No. 88, and this amount was therefore accrued as of December 31, 2007. In the first quarter of 2008, the Company reached agreement with its union workforce on a new three-year labor agreement. As part of this agreement, the Company offered and, by March 31, 2008, 284 union employees accepted special termination benefits totaling \$25 million. The Company determined that \$22.1 million of these benefits had been earned through March 31, 2008 and this amount was therefore accrued as of March 31, 2008. Remaining special termination benefits for both union and management employees are subject to future service requirements as determined by the Company and will be amortized to expense over the future service period. The Company estimates these amounts to be approximately \$5 million for 2008, which includes \$1.5 million and \$3.5 million, respectively, expensed during the three months and nine months ended September 30, 2008 for both union and management employees, and approximately \$2 million for 2009.

Pension and postretirement curtailment charges Management terminations contemplated above represent 10% of plan service years for the management pension plan and 15% of plan service years for the management postretirement plan, resulting in a pension and postretirement plan curtailment charge of \$6.4 million in the fourth quarter of 2007. Union terminations contemplated above represent approximately 11% of the plan service years for both the pension and postretirement plans, resulting in a curtailment charge of \$15.5 million for the pension and postretirement plans in the first quarter of 2008.

For the nine months ended September 30, 2008, the Company accrued restructuring expense of \$26.0 million for the Wireline segment, \$0.5 million for the Wireless segment and \$0.4 million for the Technology Solutions segment. The restructuring reserve included in Other current liabilities was \$1.6 million and \$4.5 million at September 30, 2008 and December 31, 2007, respectively, and \$6.5 million and \$18.4 million was included in Other noncurrent liabilities in the Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets at September 30, 2008 and December 31, 2007, respectively. The special termination benefits and curtailment charges are included in Accrued pension and postretirement benefits in the Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheet at September 30, 2008. See Note 7 to the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements for further discussion relating to the special termination pension and postretirement benefits and the curtailment charge.

#### 2001 Restructuring

In 2001, the Company adopted a restructuring plan which included initiatives to consolidate data centers, reduce the Company s expense structure, exit the network construction business, eliminate other non-strategic operations, and merge the digital subscriber line and certain dial-up Internet operations into the Company s other operations. The Company completed the plan as of December 31, 2002, except for certain lease obligations, which are expected to continue through June 2015.

At September 30, 2008 and December 31, 2007, \$1.6 million and \$1.3 million, respectively, of the reserve balance was included in Other current liabilities in the Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets. The reserve included in Other noncurrent liabilities in the Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets was \$4.2 million and \$4.9 million at September 30, 2008 and December 31, 2007, respectively.

10

Form 10-Q Part I Cincinnati Bell Inc.

#### 7. Pensions and Postretirement Plans

The following information relates to all Company noncontributory defined benefit pension plans, postretirement health care, and life insurance benefit plans.

As a result of the acceptance of special termination benefits by certain retirement eligible union employees in the first quarter of 2008 (see Note 6), the Company determined that a curtailment charge associated with its union pension and postretirement plans was required due to the significant decrease in the expected future service years. The curtailment charge for the pension plan and the postretirement plan for the nine months ended September 30, 2008, consisted of both an increase in the benefit obligations of \$2.2 million and \$12.5 million and the acceleration of unrecognized prior service cost of \$0.9 million and \$(0.1) million, respectively.

As a result of the new union labor agreement (see Note 6) and curtailment in the first quarter of 2008, the Company remeasured only its union pension and postretirement obligations using revised assumptions, including modified retiree benefit payment assumptions and a discount rate of 6.4%. As a result of the remeasurement, the Company s pension and postretirement obligations were reduced by approximately \$17 million, deferred tax assets were reduced for the related tax effect by \$6 million, and equity was increased by \$11 million.

Pension and postretirement benefit costs are as follows:

	Pension Benefits Three Months Endo				Other	rement and Benefits ber 30,
(dollars in millions)	200	8	2007		2008	2007
Service cost	\$ 2	2.2	\$ 2.	1	\$ 0.4	\$ 0.9
Interest cost on projected benefit obligation	7	7.3	7.	1	4.5	4.8
Expected return on plan assets	(8	3.7)	(9.	4)	(0.4)	(0.7)
Amortization of:						
Transition obligation					0.3	1.0
Prior service cost	(	0.1	0.	4		0.9
Actuarial loss	(	0.7	0.	9	0.8	0.8
Special termination benefit		1.3			0.2	
	\$ 2	2.9	\$ 1.	1	\$ 5.8	\$ 7.7

	Pension Nine	Benefits Months Endo	Postretire Other E ed Septembe	Senefits	
(dollars in millions)	2008	2007	2008	2007	
Service cost	\$ 6.7	\$ 6.3	\$ 1.4	\$ 2.6	
Interest cost on projected benefit obligation	21.5	21.0	13.8	15.3	
Expected return on plan assets	(26.2)	(25.9)	(1.4)	(2.7)	
Amortization of:					
Transition obligation			1.6	3.1	
Prior service cost	0.4	2.0	0.4	4.8	
Actuarial loss	2.1	3.0	2.7	3.0	
Special termination benefit	25.0		0.6		
Curtailment charge	3.1		12.4		
	\$ 32.6	\$ 64	\$ 31.5	\$ 26.1	

19

Form 10-Q Part I Cincinnati Bell Inc.

#### 8. Business Segment Information

The Company operates in the following three segments: Wireline, Wireless and Technology Solutions. The Wireline segment provides local voice, data, long-distance and other services to customers primarily in southwestern Ohio, northern Kentucky, and southeastern Indiana. The Wireless segment provides advanced, digital voice and data communications services and sales of related communications equipment to customers in the Greater Cincinnati and Dayton, Ohio operating areas. The Technology Solutions segment provides a range of fully managed and outsourced IT and telecommunications services and offers solutions that combine data center collocation services along with the sale, installation, and maintenance of major branded IT and telephony equipment.

Certain corporate administrative expenses have been allocated to segments based upon the nature of the expense and the relative size of the segment.

The Company s business segment information is as follows:

(dollars in millions)	Three Months Ended September 30, 2008 2007			ľ	hs Ended per 30, 2007	
Revenue						
Wireline	\$ 200.6	\$	202.0	\$	605.7	\$ 609.8
Wireless	80.8		75.1		237.6	217.1
Technology Solutions	73.3		74.1		226.5	180.1
Intersegment	(8.2)		(6.9)		(23.6)	(18.4)
Total revenue	\$ 346.5	\$	344.3	\$	1,046.2	\$ 988.6
Intersegment revenue						
Wireline	\$ 6.6	\$	5.8	\$	18.9	\$ 15.6
Wireless	0.8		0.7		2.4	1.9
Technology Solutions	0.8		0.4		2.3	0.9
Total intersegment revenue	\$ 8.2	\$	6.9	\$	23.6	\$ 18.4
Operating income						
Wireline	\$ 65.6	\$	73.0	\$	182.5	\$ 217.1
Wireless	11.7		9.0		36.3	26.8
Technology Solutions	5.8		5.7		13.3	12.2
Corporate	(3.3)		(5.1)		(15.3)	(14.7)
Total operating income	\$ 79.8	\$	82.6	\$	216.8	\$ 241.4

	September 30,	Dec	ember 31,	
	2008	2007		
Assets				
Wireline	\$ 689.8	\$	684.5	
Wireless	370.2		369.3	
Technology Solutions	311.8		243.2	
Corporate and eliminations	651.6		722.6	
Total assets	\$ 2,023.4	\$	2,019.6	

12

Form 10-Q Part I Cincinnati Bell Inc.

#### 9. Stock-Based Compensation Plans

Stock options

The following table summarizes stock option activity for the nine months ended September 30, 2008:

(in thousands, except per share amounts)	Shares	Ez H	ed-Average xercise Prices r Share	Weighted-Average Contractual Life in Years
Options outstanding at January 1, 2008	20,625	\$	10.76	4.6
Granted	912		3.80	
Exercised	(85)		3.86	
Expired	(1,390)		11.60	
Options outstanding at September 30, 2008	20,062	\$	10.41	4.3
Options exercisable at September 30, 2008	17,705	\$	11.20	3.7

During the nine months ended September 30, 2008, the Company primarily granted performance-based stock options, which vest over four years upon the achievement of certain performance-based objectives. The Company recognized compensation expense of \$0.4 million related to stock options for the three months ended September 30, 2008, \$1.2 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2008, \$0.1 million for the three months ended September 30, 2007, and \$0.7 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2007. As of September 30, 2008, there was \$2.4 million of unrecognized compensation expense related to non-vested stock options. This expense is expected to be recognized over a weighted average period of approximately two years. At September 30, 2008, the aggregate intrinsic value of stock options outstanding and exercisable was immaterial.

The weighted average fair values at the date of grant were estimated using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model with the following assumptions:

	Nine Mo Ended Septe	
	2008	2007
Expected volatility	30.7%	28.9%
Risk-free interest rate	2.9%	4.6%
Expected holding period years	5	5
Expected dividends	0.0%	0.0%
Weighted-average grant date fair value	\$ 1.23	\$ 1.69

The expected volatility assumption used in the Black-Scholes pricing model was based on historical volatility. The risk-free interest rate was based on the U.S. Treasury yield curve in effect at the time of grant. The expected holding period was estimated using the historical exercise behavior of employees and adjusted for abnormal activity. Expected dividends are based on the Company s history of paying dividends, as well as restrictions in place under the Company s debt covenants.

Form 10-Q Part I Cincinnati Bell Inc.

Performance-based awards

(in thousands, except per share amounts)	Shares	Averag Date F	ghted- ge Grant air Value Share
Non-vested as of January 1, 2008	2,932	\$	4.75
Granted*	1,438		3.98
Vested	(550)		4.51
Forfeited	(489)		4.30
Non-vested at September 30, 2008	3,331	\$	4.52

Time-based restricted awards

(in thousands, except per share amounts)	Shares	Avera Date F	ighted- ige Grant Fair Value Share
Non-vested as of January 1, 2008	375	\$	4.87
Granted	60		4.69
Vested	(9)		5.20
Forfeited	(18)		4.84
Non-vested at September 30, 2008	408	\$	4.84

Awards granted generally vest in one-third increments over a period of three years. The Company recognized expense related to time-based restricted awards of \$0.2 million for the three months ended September 30, 2008, \$0.5 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2008, less than \$0.1 million for the three months ended September 30, 2007 and \$0.2 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2007. As of September 30, 2008, there was \$1.2 million of unrecognized compensation expense related to these shares. This expense is expected to be recognized over a weighted average period of approximately two years.

<sup>\*</sup> Assumes the maximum number of awards that can be earned if the performance conditions are achieved. Awards granted generally vest over three to four years and upon the achievement of certain performance-based objectives. The Company recognized expense for performance-based awards of \$0.8 million for the three months ended September 30, 2008, \$3.4 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2007, and \$2.2 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2007. As of September 30, 2008, there was \$5.8 million of unrecognized compensation expense related to performance-based awards. This expense is expected to be recognized over a weighted average period of approximately two years.

Form 10-Q Part I Cincinnati Bell Inc.

# 10. Supplemental Guarantor Information Cincinnati Bell Telephone Notes

Cincinnati Bell Telephone Company LLC (CBT), a wholly-owned subsidiary of Cincinnati Bell Inc. (the Parent Company or CBI), has \$230 million in notes outstanding that are guaranteed by the Parent Company and no other subsidiaries of the Parent Company. The guarantee is full and unconditional. The Parent Company s subsidiaries generate substantially all of its income and cash flow and generally distribute or advance the funds necessary to meet the Parent Company s debt service obligations. Separately, in connection with a fifteen year contract for 25,000 square feet of data center space between Cincinnati Bell Technology Solutions Inc. (CBTS), which is a non-guarantor subsidiary of CBI, and a data center customer, CBI has guaranteed the performance obligations of CBTS in relation to providing the data center space and managed services under that long-term contract.

The following information sets forth the Condensed Consolidating Statements of Operations and Cash Flows for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2008 and 2007 and Condensed Consolidating Balance Sheets as of September 30, 2008 and December 31, 2007 of (1) the Parent Company, as the guarantor (2) Cincinnati Bell Telephone Company LLC, as the issuer, and (3) the non-guarantor subsidiaries on a combined basis:

#### **Condensed Consolidating Statements of Operations**

	Parent	Three Months Ended September 30, 2008				
(dollars in millions)	(Guarantor)	CBT	(Non-guarantors)	Eliminations	Total	
Revenue	\$	\$ 178.4	\$ 180.9	\$ (12.8)	\$ 346.5	
Operating costs and expenses	3.5	119.6	156.4	(12.8)	266.7	
Operating income (loss)	(3.5)	58.8	24.5		79.8	
Interest expense	29.4	3.8	6.8	(5.0)	35.0	
Other expense (income), net	(6.1)	1.8	(1.7)	5.0	(1.0)	
Income (loss) before income taxes	(26.8)	53.2	19.4		45.8	
Income tax expense (benefit)	(10.3)	21.9	7.6		19.2	
Equity in earnings of subsidiaries, net of tax	43.1			(43.1)		
Net income	26.6	31.3	11.8	(43.1)	26.6	
Preferred stock dividends	2.6				2.6	
Net income applicable to common shareowners	\$ 24.0	\$ 31.3	\$ 11.8	\$ (43.1)	\$ 24.0	

	Parent	Three N	Months Ended Septen Other	nber 30, 2007	
	(Guarantor)	CBT	(Non-guarantors)	uarantors) Eliminations	
Revenue	\$	\$ 184.7	\$ 170.8	\$ (11.2)	\$ 344.3
Operating costs and expenses	5.1	118.5	149.3	(11.2)	261.7
Operating income (loss)	(5.1)	66.2	21.5		82.6
Interest expense	33.6	3.2	7.4	(6.2)	38.0
Other expense (income), net	(6.4)	1.9	(2.2)	6.9	0.2
Income (loss) before income taxes	(32.3)	61.1	16.3	(0.7)	44.4
Income tax expense (benefit)	(7.9)	20.5	6.1		18.7
Equity in earnings of subsidiaries, net of tax	50.1			(50.1)	

# Edgar Filing: CINCINNATI BELL INC - Form 10-Q

Net income Preferred stock dividends	25.7 2.6	40.6	10.2	(50.8)	25.7 2.6
Net income applicable to common shareowners	\$ 23.1	\$ 40.6	\$ 10.2	\$ (50.8)	\$ 23.1

Form 10-Q Part I Cincinnati Bell Inc.

# **Condensed Consolidating Statements of Operations**

	Parent	Nine Months Ended September 30, 2008 Other						
(dollars in millions)	(Guarantor)	CBT	(Non-gr	uarantors)	Elimi	nations	1	otal
Revenue	\$	\$ 540.5	\$	543.1	\$	(37.4)	\$ 1	,046.2
Operating costs and expenses	14.9	377.2		474.7		(37.4)		829.4
Operating income (loss)	(14.9)	163.3		68.4				216.8
Interest expense	91.2	11.2		19.3		(15.6)		106.1
Other expense (income), net	(18.3)	5.6		(5.3)		15.6		(2.4)
Income (loss) before income taxes Income tax expense (benefit)	(87.8) (26.3)	146.5 54.2		54.4 20.1				113.1 48.0
Equity in earnings of subsidiaries, net of tax	126.6	5.1.2		2011		(126.6)		.0.0
Net income	65.1	92.3		34.3		(126.6)		65.1
Preferred stock dividends	7.8							7.8
Net income applicable to common shareowners	\$ 57.3	\$ 92.3	\$	34.3	\$	(126.6)	\$	57.3

	Parent	Nine Months Ended September 30, 2007 other										
	(Guarantor)	CBT	(Non-guarantors)		(Non-guarantors)		Non-guarantors) Elimination		n-guarantors) Elin		7	Γotal
Revenue	\$	\$ 558.8	\$	460.5	\$	(30.7)	\$	988.6				
Operating costs and expenses	15.7	361.2		401.0		(30.7)		747.2				
Operating income (loss)	(15.7)	197.6		59.5				241.4				
Interest expense	104.4	11.4		22.6		(21.3)		117.1				
Other expense (income), net	(24.5)	3.8		(2.7)		21.3		(2.1)				
Income (loss) before income taxes	(95.6)	182.4		39.6				126.4				
Income tax expense (benefit)	(23.8)	63.5		14.3				54.0				
Equity in earnings of subsidiaries, net of tax	144.2					(144.2)						
Net income	72.4	118.9		25.3		(144.2)		72.4				
Preferred stock dividends	7.8							7.8				
Net income applicable to common shareowners	\$ 64.6	\$ 118.9	\$	25.3	\$	(144.2)	\$	64.6				

Form 10-Q Part I Cincinnati Bell Inc.

# **Condensed Consolidating Balance Sheets**

	Par	ent	As of September 30 Other					2008		
(dollars in millions)	(Guarantor)		CBT	•	(Non-g	guarantors)	Eli	iminations	ons Tota	
Cash and cash equivalents	\$	6.8	\$ 0	.6	\$	0.6	\$		\$	8.0
Receivables, net		1.1				176.2				177.3
Other current assets		18.1	28	.6		94.8		(24.1)		117.4
Total current assets		26.0	29	.2		271.6		(24.1)		302.7
Property, plant and equipment, net		0.5	585	.0		417.6			1,	003.1
Goodwill and intangibles, net			3	.1		195.6				198.7
Investments in and advances to subsidiaries	1,0	42.2						(1,042.2)		
Other noncurrent assets	3	04.6	16	0.		226.9		(28.6)		518.9
Total assets	\$ 1,3	73.3	\$ 633	.3	\$	1,111.7	\$	(1,094.9)	\$ 2.	023.4
Current portion of long-term debt	\$	4.0	\$ 0	.7	\$	5.0	\$		\$	9.7
Accounts payable		0.1	37	.2		64.9				102.2
Other current liabilities		61.8	69	.4		55.1		(2.0)		184.3
Total current liabilities		65.9	107	.3		125.0		(2.0)		296.2
Long-term debt, less current portion	1,6	37.0	235	.2		108.6		( )	1.	980.8
Other noncurrent liabilities		29.9	38	.7		88.0		(50.7)		405.9
Intercompany payables			3	.3		460.2		(463.5)		
1 313								, ,		
Total liabilities	2.0	32.8	384	.5		781.8		(516.2)	2.	682.9
Shareowners equity (deficit)	,	59.5)	248	.8		329.9		(578.7)		659.5)
To A Contract	(3	/						( )	`	,
Total liabilities and shareowners equity (deficit)	\$ 1.3	73 3	\$ 633	3	\$	1.111.7	\$	(1,094.9)	\$ 2	023.4
Tomi hashines and shares miers equity (deficit)	Ψ 1,5	, 3.3	ΨΟΟΟ		Ψ	1,111./	Ψ	(1,0) 1.)	ΨΔ	,023. i

	Parent	As of December 31, 2007 Parent Other							
	(Guarantor)	CBT	BT (Non-guarantors) Eliminations		Total				
Cash and cash equivalents	\$ 23.6	\$ 1.9	\$ 0.6	\$	\$ 26.1				
Receivables, net	0.1		176.4		176.5				
Other current assets	14.9	28.5	90.0	(18.3)	115.1				
Total current assets	38.6	30.4	267.0	(18.3)	317.7				
Property, plant and equipment, net	0.3	590.1	343.3		933.7				
Goodwill and intangibles, net		3.4	180.2		183.6				
Investments in and advances to subsidiaries	1,036.4			(1,036.4)					
Other noncurrent assets	319.8	16.0	279.9	(31.1)	584.6				
Total assets	\$ 1,395.1	\$ 639.9	\$ 1,070.4	\$ (1,085.8)	\$ 2,019.6				
Current portion of long-term debt	\$ 4.0	\$ 0.6	\$ 3.2	\$	\$ 7.8				
Accounts payable		40.7	64.8		105.5				
Other current liabilities	90.8	65.1	48.4		204.3				

Edgar Filing: CINCINNATI BELL INC - Form 10-Q

Total current liabilities	94.8	106.4	116.4		317.6
Long-term debt, less current portion	1,671.4	235.6	94.9		2,001.9
Other noncurrent liabilities	296.5	61.2	59.4	(49.4)	367.7
Intercompany payables		14.2	472.0	(486.2)	
Total liabilities	2,062.7	417.4	742.7	(535.6)	2,687.2
Shareowners equity (deficit)	(667.6)	222.5	327.7	(550.2)	(667.6)
Total liabilities and shareowners equity (deficit)	\$ 1,395.1	\$ 639.9	\$ 1,070.4	\$ (1,085.8)	\$ 2,019.6

Form 10-Q Part I Cincinnati Bell Inc.

# **Condensed Consolidating Statements of Cash Flows**

	Parent	Nine Months Ended September 30, 2008 Other							
(dollars in millions)	(Guarantor)	CBT	(Non-guarantors)	Eliminations	Total				
Cash flows provided by (used in) operating activities	\$ (34.1)	\$ 144.6	\$ 155.8	\$	\$ 266.3				
Capital expenditures	(0.4)	(66.0)	(92.3)		(158.7)				
Acquisitions of businesses		(2.3)	(19.3)		(21.6)				
Other investing activities	0.1	0.3	0.6		1.0				
Cash flows used in investing activities	(0.3)	(68.0)	(111.0)		(179.3)				
	· ,	, ,	, ,		,				
Funding between Parent and subsidiaries, net	121.9	(77.4)	(44.5)						
Increase in corporate credit facility, net	25.0	(111)			25.0				
Issuance of debt			3.0		3.0				
Repayment of debt	(53.6)	(0.5)	(3.3)		(57.4)				
Common stock repurchase	(67.5)				(67.5)				
Other financing activities	(8.2)				(8.2)				
Cash flows provided by (used in) financing activities	17.6	(77.9)	(44.8)		(105.1)				
, , , ,		, ,	, ,		, ,				
Decrease in cash and cash equivalents	(16.8)	(1.3)			(18.1)				
Beginning cash and cash equivalents	23.6	1.9	0.6		26.1				
Ending cash and cash equivalents	\$ 6.8	\$ 0.6	\$ 0.6	\$	\$ 8.0				
Ending cash and cash equivalents	Ψ 0.0	Ψ 0.0	Ψ 0.0	Ψ	Ψ 0.0				

	Parent	Nine Months Ended September 30, 2007 Other						
	(Guarantor)	CBT	(Non-guarantors)	Eliminations	Total			
Cash flows provided by (used in) operating activities	\$ (71.6)	\$ 240.4	\$ 40.5	\$	\$ 209.3			
Capital expenditures		(68.0)	(84.4)		(152.4)			
Acquisition of business		(4.6)			(4.6)			
Other investing activities	(0.4)	0.8	(1.1)		(0.7)			
Cash flows used in investing activities	(0.4)	(71.8)	(85.5)		(157.7)			
Funding between Parent and subsidiaries, net	197.2	(168.3)	(28.9)					
Increase in corporate credit facility, net	40.0				40.0			
Issuance of debt			75.0		75.0			
Repayment of debt	(209.1)	(0.8)	(1.3)		(211.2)			
Other financing activities	(6.3)	0.1	(1.3)		(7.5)			
Cash flows provided by (used in) financing activities	21.8	(169.0)	43.5		(103.7)			
Decrease in cash and cash equivalents	(50.2)	(0.4)	(1.5)		(52.1)			
Beginning cash and cash equivalents	75.9	1.5	2.0		79.4			

Ending cash and cash equivalents

\$ 25.7

\$ 1.1

\$

0.5 \$

\$ 27.3

18

Form 10-Q Part I Cincinnati Bell Inc.

#### 71/4% Senior Notes Due 2013, 7% Senior Notes Due 2015, and 83/8% Senior Subordinated Notes Due 2014

The Parent Company s 7/4% Senior Notes due 2013, 7% Senior Notes due 2015, and 8 3/8% Senior Subordinated Notes due 2014 are guaranteed by the following subsidiaries: Cincinnati Bell Entertainment Inc. (f/k/a ZoomTown.com Inc.), Cincinnati Bell Complete Protection Inc., Cincinnati Bell Any Distance Inc., Cincinnati Bell Telecommunication Services LLC, Cincinnati Bell Wireless Company, Cincinnati Bell Wireless LLC, GramTel Inc. (f/k/a BCSIVA Inc.), BRCOM Inc., CBTS, and IXC Internet Services Inc. The Parent Company owns directly or indirectly 100% of each guarantor and each guarantee is full and unconditional and joint and several. The Parent Company s subsidiaries generate substantially all of its income and cash flow and generally distribute or advance the funds necessary to meet the Parent Company s debt service obligations. Separately, in connection with a fifteen year contract for 25,000 square feet of data center space between CBTS, a guarantor subsidiary of these CBI notes, and a data center customer, CBI has guaranteed the performance obligations of CBTS in relation to providing the data center space and managed services under that long-term contract.

The following information sets forth the Condensed Consolidating Statements of Operations and Cash Flows for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2008 and 2007 and the Condensed Consolidating Balance Sheets as of September 30, 2008 and December 31, 2007 of (1) the Parent Company, as the issuer (2) the guarantor subsidiaries on a combined basis and (3) the non-guarantor subsidiaries on a combined basis:

#### **Condensed Consolidating Statements of Operations**

	ъ.	Three Months Ended September 30, 2008						
(dollars in millions)	Parent (Issuer)	Gua	Guarantors		Non-guarantors		ninations	Total
Revenue	\$	\$	196.3	\$	163.0	\$	(12.8)	\$ 346.5
Operating costs and expenses	3.5		171.9		104.1		(12.8)	266.7
Operating income (loss)	(3.5)		24.4		58.9			79.8
Interest expense	29.4		5.6		5.0		(5.0)	35.0
Other expense (income), net	(6.1)		(0.6)		0.7		5.0	(1.0)
Income (loss) before income taxes	(26.8)		19.4		53.2			45.8
Income tax expense (benefit)	(10.3)		7.2		22.3			19.2
Equity in earnings of subsidiaries, net of tax	43.1						(43.1)	
Net income	26.6		12.2		30.9		(43.1)	26.6
Preferred stock dividends	2.6							2.6
Net income applicable to common shareowners	\$ 24.0	\$	12.2	\$	30.9	\$	(43.1)	\$ 24.0

	Three Months Ended September 30, 2007									
	Parent (Issuer)	Guarantors	Non-guarantors	Eliminations	Total					
Revenue	\$	\$ 183.7	\$ 171.8	\$ (11.2)	\$ 344.3					
Operating costs and expenses	5.1	162.6	105.2	(11.2)	261.7					
Operating income (loss)	(5.1)	21.1	66.6		82.6					
Interest expense	33.6	5.6	5.0	(6.2)	38.0					
Other expense (income), net	(6.4)	0.7	(1.0)	6.9	0.2					

Edgar Filing: CINCINNATI BELL INC - Form 10-Q

Income (loss) before income taxes	(32.3)	14.8	62.6	(0.7)	44.4
Income tax expense (benefit)	(7.9)	5.7	20.9		18.7
Equity in earnings of subsidiaries, net of tax	50.1			(50.1)	
Net income	25.7	9.1	41.7	(50.8)	25.7
Preferred stock dividends	2.6				2.6
Net income applicable to common shareowners	\$ 23.1	\$ 9.1	\$ 41.7	\$ (50.8)	\$ 23.1

Form 10-Q Part I Cincinnati Bell Inc.

# **Condensed Consolidating Statements of Operations**

Nine Months Ended Sentember 30 2008					
	Nino	Monthe	Endad	Contombon	20 2008

	Parent		_		
(dollars in millions)	(Issuer)	Guarantors	uarantors Non-guarantors		Total
Revenue	\$	\$ 583.1	\$ 500.5	\$ (37.4)	\$ 1,046.2
Operating costs and expenses	14.9	526.2	325.7	(37.4)	829.4
Operating income (loss)	(14.9)	56.9	174.8		216.8
Interest expense	91.2	15.6	14.9	(15.6)	106.1
Other expense (income), net	(18.3)	(0.1)	0.4	15.6	(2.4)
Income (loss) hafara income tayes	(87.8)	41.4	159.5		113.1
Income (loss) before income taxes Income tax expense (benefit)	(26.3)	14.9	59.4		48.0
Equity in earnings of subsidiaries, net of tax	126.6			(126.6)	
		~ ~	1001	4266	2 <b>.</b> .
Net income	65.1	26.5	100.1	(126.6)	65.1
Preferred stock dividends	7.8				7.8
Net income applicable to common shareowners	\$ 57.3	\$ 26.5	\$ 100.1	\$ (126.6)	\$ 57.3

# Nine Months Ended September 30, 2007

	Parent				
	(Issuer)	Guarantors	Non-guarantors	Eliminations	Total
Revenue	\$	\$ 499.8	\$ 519.5	\$ (30.7)	\$ 988.6
Operating costs and expenses	15.7	444.5	317.7	(30.7)	747.2
Operating income (loss)	(15.7)	55.3	201.8		241.4
Interest expense	104.4	19.5	14.5	(21.3)	117.1
Other expense (income), net	(24.5)	0.9	0.2	21.3	(2.1)
Income (loss) before income taxes	(95.6)	34.9	187.1		126.4
Income tax expense (benefit)	(23.8)	12.8	65.0		54.0
Equity in earnings of subsidiaries, net of tax	144.2			(144.2)	
Net income	72.4	22.1	122.1	(144.2)	72.4
Preferred stock dividends	7.8				7.8
Net income applicable to common shareowners	\$ 64.6	\$ 22.1	\$ 122.1	\$ (144.2)	\$ 64.6

Form 10-Q Part I Cincinnati Bell Inc.

# **Condensed Consolidating Balance Sheets**

			As of September 30, 2008								
	Parei	ıt									
(dollars in millions)	(Issue	r)	Gua	arantors	Non-g	uarantors	Elimin	ations	T	otal	
Cash and cash equivalents	\$	5.8	\$	0.6	\$	0.6	\$		\$	8.0	
Receivables, net		1.1		62.6		113.6				177.3	
Other current assets	1	3.1		90.7		32.7		(24.1)		117.4	
Total current assets	2	5.0		153.9		146.9		(24.1)		302.7	
Property, plant and equipment, net	(	0.5		417.6		585.0			1,	003.1	
Goodwill and intangibles, net				195.6		3.1				198.7	
Investments in and advances to subsidiaries	1,04	2.2	1.6 (1.		043.8)	6)					
Other noncurrent assets	30	4.6		228.7		14.2		(28.6)	518.9		
Total assets	\$ 1,37	3.3	\$	995.8	\$	750.8	\$ (1,	096.5)	\$ 2,	023.4	
Current portion of long-term debt	\$	4.0	\$	5.0	\$	0.7	\$		\$	9.7	
Accounts payable	(	0.1		73.0		29.1				102.2	
Other current liabilities	6	1.8		57.6		66.9		(2.0)		184.3	
Total current liabilities	6.	5.9		135.6		96.7		(2.0)		296.2	
Long-term debt, less current portion	1,63	7.0		30.6		313.2			1,	980.8	
Other noncurrent liabilities	32	9.9		94.8		31.9		(50.7)		405.9	
Intercompany payables				430.0		35.1	(	465.1)			
Total liabilities	2,03	2.8		691.0		476.9	(	517.8)	2,	682.9	
Shareowners equity (deficit)	(65)	9.5)		304.8		273.9	(	578.7)	(	659.5)	
• • •	•	-								,	
Total liabilities and shareowners equity (deficit)	\$ 1,37	3.3	\$	995.8	\$	750.8	\$ (1,	096.5)	\$ 2,	023.4	

	Pa	rent	As of December 31, 2007							
	(Issuer)		Gua	arantors	Non-guarantors		Eliminations		Total	
Cash and cash equivalents	\$	23.6	\$	0.8	\$	1.7	\$		\$	26.1
Receivables, net		0.1		61.3		115.1				176.5
Other current assets		14.9		87.1		31.4		(18.3)		115.1
Total current assets		38.6		149.2		148.2		(18.3)		317.7
Property, plant and equipment, net		0.3		345.2		588.2				933.7
Goodwill and intangibles, net				180.2		3.4				183.6
Investments in and advances to subsidiaries	1,0	036.4		26.8				(1,063.2)		
Other noncurrent assets	(	319.8		278.8		17.1		(31.1)		584.6
Total assets	\$ 1,3	395.1	\$	980.2	\$	756.9	\$	(1,112.6)	\$ 2	,019.6
Current portion of long-term debt	\$	4.0	\$	3.2	\$	0.6	\$		\$	7.8
Accounts payable				98.7		6.8				105.5
Other current liabilities		90.8		51.2		62.3				204.3

Edgar Filing: CINCINNATI BELL INC - Form 10-Q

Total current liabilities	94.8	153.1	69.	7		317.6
Long-term debt, less current portion	1,671.4	19.9	310.	6		2,001.9
Other noncurrent liabilities	296.5	66.6	54.	0	(49.4)	367.7
Intercompany payables		430.2	82.	8	(513.0)	
Total liabilities	2,062.7	669.8	517.	1	(562.4)	2,687.2
Shareowners equity (deficit)	(667.6)	310.4	239.	8	(550.2)	(667.6)
Total liabilities and shareowners equity (deficit)	\$ 1,395.1	\$ 980.2	\$ 756.	9	\$ (1,112.6)	\$ 2,019.6

Form 10-Q Part I Cincinnati Bell Inc.

# **Condensed Consolidating Statements of Cash Flows**

	Nine Months Ended September 30, 2008 Parent								
(dollars in millions)	(Issuer)	Guarantors		Non-guarantors		Eliminations	Total		
Cash flows provided by (used in) operating activities	\$ (34.1)	\$	134.9	\$	165.5	\$	\$ 266.3		
Capital expenditures	(0.4)		(92.3)		(66.0)		(158.7)		
Acquisitions of businesses			(19.3)		(2.3)		(21.6)		
Other investing activities	0.1		0.6		0.3		1.0		
Cash flows used in investing activities	(0.3)		(111.0)		(68.0)		(179.3)		
Funding between Parent and subsidiaries, net	121.9		(20.8)		(101.1)				
Increase in corporate credit facility, net	25.0						25.0		
Issuance of debt					3.0		3.0		
Repayment of debt	(53.6)		(3.3)		(0.5)		(57.4)		
Common stock repurchase	(67.5)						(67.5)		
Other financing activities	(8.2)						(8.2)		
Cash flows provided by (used in) financing activities	17.6		(24.1)		(98.6)		(105.1)		
Decrease in cash and cash equivalents	(16.8)		(0.2)		(1.1)		(18.1)		
Beginning cash and cash equivalents	23.6		0.8		1.7		26.1		
Ending cash and cash equivalents	\$ 6.8	\$	0.6	\$	0.6	\$	\$ 8.0		
	Parent	Nine Months Ended September 30, 2007							
	(Issuer)		Guarantors		guarantors	Eliminations	Total		
Cash flows provided by (used in) operating activities	\$ (71.6)	\$	180.7	\$	100.2	\$	\$ 209.3		
Capital aypanditures			(96.7)		(65.7)		(152.4)		

	(Issuer)	Guarantors	Non anomantana	Eliminations	Total
			Non-guarantors		
Cash flows provided by (used in) operating activities	\$ (71.6)	\$ 180.7	\$ 100.2	\$	\$ 209.3
Capital expenditures		(86.7)	(65.7)		(152.4)
Acquisition of business			(4.6)		(4.6)
Other investing activities	(0.4)	(1.1)	0.8		(0.7)
Cash flows used in investing activities	(0.4)	(87.8)	(69.5)		(157.7)
Funding between Parent and subsidiaries, net	197.2	(93.0)	(104.2)		
Increase in corporate credit facility, net	40.0				40.0
Issuance of debt			75.0		75.0
Repayment of debt	(209.1)	(1.3)	(0.8)		(211.2)
Other financing activities	(6.3)		(1.2)		(7.5)
Cash flows provided by (used in) financing activities	21.8	(94.3)	(31.2)		(103.7)
		, ,	ì		. ,
Decrease in cash and cash equivalents	(50.2)	(1.4)	(0.5)		(52.1)
Beginning cash and cash equivalents	75.9	2.0	1.5		79.4

Ending cash and cash equivalents

\$ 25.7

\$ 0.6

\$

1.0 \$

\$ 27.3

22

Form 10-Q Part I Cincinnati Bell Inc.

#### Item 2. Management s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

Information included in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q contains certain forward-looking statements that involve potential risks and uncertainties. The Company s future results could differ materially from those discussed herein. Factors that could cause or contribute to such differences include, but are not limited to, those discussed herein and those discussed in the Company s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2007. Readers are cautioned not to place undue reliance on these forward-looking statements that speak only as of the date thereof.

The Company was initially incorporated under the laws of Ohio in 1983 and remains incorporated under the laws of Ohio. It has its principal executive offices at 221 East Fourth Street, Cincinnati, Ohio 45202 (telephone number (513) 397-9900 and website address <a href="http://www.cincinnatibell.com">http://www.cincinnatibell.com</a>). The Company makes available its reports on Form 10-K, 10-Q, and 8-K (as well as all amendments to these reports) on its website, free of charge, at the Investor Relations section as soon as practicable after they have been electronically filed.

The Company files annual, quarterly and current reports, proxy statements and other information with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the SEC) under the Exchange Act. These reports and other information filed by the Company may be read and copied at the Public Reference Room of the SEC, 100 F Street N.E., Washington, D.C. 20549. Information may be obtained about the Public Reference Room by calling the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330. The SEC also maintains an Internet site that contains reports, proxy statements, and other information about issuers, like the Company, which file electronically with the SEC. The address of that site is <a href="http://www.sec.gov">http://www.sec.gov</a>.

#### **Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates**

The preparation of Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements requires the Company to make estimates and judgments that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues, and expenses. In the Company s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2007, the Company identified critical accounting policies that affect its more significant estimates and assumptions used in preparing its Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements. These critical accounting policies include revenue recognition, accounting for allowances for uncollectible accounts receivable, reviewing the carrying values of goodwill and indefinite-lived intangible assets, reviewing the carrying values of property, plant and equipment, accounting for business combinations, accounting for taxes, accounting for pension and postretirement expenses, and accounting for termination benefits.

### **Results of Operations**

The financial results for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2008 and 2007 referred to in this discussion should be read in conjunction with the Condensed Consolidated Statements of Operations in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q. Results for interim periods may not be indicative of the results for subsequent periods or the full year.

#### CONSOLIDATED OVERVIEW

Consolidated revenue totaled \$346.5 million for the third quarter of 2008, an increase of \$2.2 million compared to the third quarter of 2007. The increase was primarily due to the following:

\$5.7 million higher revenues in the Wireless segment primarily due to increased postpaid service revenue from additional subscribers;

\$1.4 million lower revenues in the Wireline segment due to lower voice revenue offset by increased data, long distance and voice over internet protocol (VoIP) revenue; and

\$0.8 million lower revenues in the Technology Solutions segment primarily due to lower telephony and IT equipment distribution revenue offset by increased data center and managed services revenue.

For the nine months ended September 30, 2008, consolidated revenue increased \$57.6 million to \$1,046.2 million as compared to \$988.6 million for the same period in 2007. The increase was primarily due to the following:

\$46.4 million higher revenues in the Technology Solutions segment primarily due to higher data center and managed services revenue and telephony and IT equipment distribution revenue;

\$20.5 million higher revenues in the Wireless segment primarily due to increased service revenue from additional postpaid subscribers and increased average revenue per user ( ARPU ); and

\$4.1 million lower revenues in the Wireline segment due to lower voice revenue offset by increased data, long distance and VoIP revenue.

23

Form 10-Q Part I Cincinnati Bell Inc.

Operating income for the third quarter of 2008 was \$79.8 million, a decrease of \$2.8 million compared to the same period in 2007. The decrease was primarily due to the following:

- \$7.4 million decrease in Wireline segment operating income primarily due to lower local voice revenue;
- \$2.7 million increase in Wireless segment operating income due primarily to additional subscribers; and

\$1.8 million decrease in corporate expenses primarily due to lower incentive compensation expense.

Operating income for the nine months ended September 30, 2008 was \$216.8 million, a decrease of \$24.6 million compared to the same period in the prior year. This decrease was primarily due to the following:

\$34.6 million decrease in Wireline segment operating income primarily due to a \$25.1 million increase in restructuring costs and asset impairment charge; and

\$9.5 million increase in Wireless segment operating income due to additional subscribers and higher ARPU. Interest expense was \$35.0 million for the third quarter of 2008 and \$106.1 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2008 as compared to \$38.0 million for the third quarter of 2007 and \$117.1 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2007. The decrease compared to last year is primarily attributable to lower interest rates and lower debt balances.

Other income of \$2.4 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2008 consisted primarily of gains on the extinguishment of debt related to the purchase and extinguishment of \$58.1 million of the  $8^{3}/_{8}\%$  Senior Subordinated Notes due 2014 and  $7^{1}/_{4}\%$  Senior Notes due 2013. Other income of \$2.1 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2007 consisted primarily of a one-time dividend received from a cost investment.

Income tax expense for the third quarter of 2008 was \$19.2 million compared to \$18.7 million for the third quarter of 2007. Income tax expense for the nine months ended September 30, 2008 was \$48.0 million as compared to \$54.0 million for the same period in 2007 primarily due to lower pre-tax income.

The Company has certain non-deductible expenses, including interest on securities originally issued to acquire its broadband business (the Broadband Securities ) or securities that the Company has subsequently issued to refinance the Broadband Securities. In periods without tax law changes, the Company expects its effective tax rate to exceed statutory rates primarily due to the non-deductible expenses associated with the Broadband Securities. The Company estimates that its effective income tax rate will be approximately 43% for the full year 2008. However, the Company expects to use federal and state net operating loss carryforwards to substantially defray payment of federal and state tax liabilities in 2008. The Company expects income tax payments for 2008 to be approximately \$5 million.

Form 10-Q Part I Cincinnati Bell Inc.

### **Discussion of Operating Segment Results**

#### WIRELINE

	Three Months Ended September 30,			Nine Months Ended September 30,				
(dollars in millions)	2008	2007	\$ Change	% Change	2008	2007	\$ Change	% Change
Revenue:								
Voice - local service	\$ 96.0	\$ 105.8	\$ (9.8)	(9)%	\$ 295.9	\$ 328.7	\$ (32.8)	(10)%
Data	68.8	65.8	3.0	5%	204.3	191.8	12.5	7%
Long distance and VoIP	24.8	19.8	5.0	25%	73.7	58.3	15.4	26%
Other	11.0	10.6	0.4	4%	31.8	31.0	0.8	3%
Total revenue	200.6	202.0	(1.4)	(1)%	605.7	609.8	(4.1)	(1)%
			(-1.)	(-),-			()	(-),
Operating costs and expenses:								
Cost of services and products	67.5	66.0	1.5	2%	201.4	199.0	2.4	1%
Selling, general and administrative	40.2	37.1	3.1	8%	118.7	113.5	5.2	5%
Depreciation	25.4	26.2	(0.8)	(3)%	75.1	78.1	(3.0)	(4)%
Amortization	0.3		0.3	n/m	0.8		0.8	n/m
Restructuring charges (gains)	1.6	(0.3)	1.9	n/m	26.0	2.1	23.9	n/m
Asset impairment				n/m	1.2		1.2	n/m
•								
Total operating costs and expenses	135.0	129.0	6.0	5%	423.2	392.7	30.5	8%
Total operating costs and expenses	155.0	125.0	0.0	3 70	123.2	3,2.7	50.5	070
Operating income	\$ 65.6	\$ 73.0	\$ (7.4)	(10)%	\$ 182.5	\$ 217.1	\$ (34.6)	(16)%
Operating margin	32.7%	36.1%		(3.4) pts	30.1%	35.6%		(5.5) pts
1 0 0								
Capital expenditures	\$ 22.5	\$ 20.9	\$ 1.6	8%	\$ 68.9	\$ 69.4	\$ (0.5)	(1)%

The Wireline segment consists of the operations of Cincinnati Bell Telephone Company LLC, which operates as an Incumbent Local Exchange Carrier ( ILEC ) within the Company s traditional territory, Cincinnati Bell Extended Territories LLC, which operates as a Competitive Local Exchange Carrier ( CLEC ) in Dayton, Ohio and communities adjacent to the ILEC s northern borders, Cincinnati Bell Any Distance Inc. ( CBAD ), which provides long distance, audio conferencing and VoIP services, Cincinnati Bell Complete Protection Inc., which provides security monitoring services and related surveillance hardware, the Company s payphone business, and its entertainment operations, which currently offers cable television primarily in Lebanon, Ohio and DirecTV on a commission basis to the remainder of its operating territory.

In February 2008, CBAD completed the acquisition of eGIX Inc. (eGIX), a CLEC provider of advanced data and voice services to businesses in Indiana and Illinois for \$18.1 million and contingent consideration of up to \$5.2 million.

In June 2008, the Company purchased the Dayton, Ohio operations of CenturyTel for \$1.5 million. The purchase includes access lines to small and medium-size customers and fiber network throughout the Dayton metro area.

### Revenue

Voice local service revenue includes local service, value added services, switched access and information services. Voice revenue decreased in both the three and nine months ended September 30, 2008 versus the same periods in 2007 primarily as a result of a 7% decrease in access lines.

Access lines within the segment s ILEC territory decreased by 66,000 or 8%, from 789,000 at September 30, 2007 to 723,000 at September 30, 2008. The access line loss resulted from several factors including customers electing to use wireless communication in lieu of the traditional local service, Company-initiated disconnections of customers with credit problems, and customers electing to use service from other providers. The Company has partially offset its access line loss in its ILEC territory by continuing to target voice services to residential and business

customers in its CLEC territory. The Company had approximately 68,000 CLEC access lines at September 30,2008, which is a 14% increase from September 30,2007.

Form 10-Q Part I Cincinnati Bell Inc.

Data revenue consists of data transport, high-speed Internet access ( DSL ), dial-up Internet access, digital trunking, and Local Area Network interconnection services. Data revenue increased \$3.0 million and \$12.5 million for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2008, respectively, compared to the same periods a year ago. The increase primarily resulted from higher DSL and data transport revenue. Data transport revenues increased by \$1.9 million and \$8.1 million for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2008, respectively, compared to the same periods a year ago primarily due to increased usage by CBW and third party users. Data revenue also increased by an additional \$1.3 million and \$4.8 million for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2008, respectively, compared to the prior year periods primarily due to an increase in DSL subscribers by 13,000, bringing total DSL subscribers to 231,000 at September 30, 2008.

Long distance and VoIP revenue increased \$5.0 million and \$15.4 million for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2008, respectively, as compared to the same periods in 2007. The revenue increases primarily resulted from the acquisition of eGIX, which generated revenue of \$3.6 million and \$9.4 million in the three and nine month periods ended September 30, 2008, respectively. The remaining increase in both periods was primarily due to an increase in minutes of use for long distance, VoIP and new broadband services. The Company had 535,000 subscribed long distance access lines as of September 30, 2008 in the Cincinnati and Dayton, Ohio operating areas compared to 548,000 as of September 30, 2007. The decrease in subscribers was due to a 6% decline in residential lines partially offset by a 7% increase in business subscribers.

## **Costs and Expenses**

Cost of services and products increased by \$1.5 million and \$2.4 million for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2008, respectively, as compared to the corresponding periods in 2007. The increase in the third quarter was due to increased network costs of \$2.0 million related to growth in long distance, VoIP, broadband services and CLEC revenues and an increase of \$1.5 million due to the acquisition of eGIX. The increase was partially offset by lower labor costs primarily attributable to the restructuring program announced in the fourth quarter of 2007. Increased costs due to the region s largest-ever power outage from the winds of Hurricane Ike were mostly offset by the contra-expense recorded for the insurance claim receivable. The increase in cost of services and products for the nine months ended September 30, 2008 resulted from an increase of \$4.2 million due to the acquisition of eGIX, a \$4.8 million increase in network costs for the reasons discussed above, and a \$1.3 million increase due to the settlement of an inter-carrier reciprocal compensation claim in 2007. These increases were partially offset by lower labor costs, mainly lower pension and postretirement costs due to plan changes announced in the third quarter of 2007.

Selling, general and administrative expenses increased \$3.1 million and \$5.2 million for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2008, respectively, versus the prior year. The increase in the quarter expenses was primarily due to the acquisition of eGIX, which had \$1.6 million of costs, and an increase in commissions, consulting and insurance costs. The increase for the nine months ended September 30, 2008 was primarily due to the acquisition of eGIX.

Restructuring expenses for the nine months ended September 30, 2008 resulted from an early retirement option offered by the Company and accepted by certain eligible union employees during the first quarter of 2008. See Note 6 to the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements for further information. Restructuring expenses for the nine months ended September 30, 2007 were primarily due to severance costs associated with the outsourcing of certain accounting functions and the reduction in workforce of various other administrative functions.

The asset impairment charge of \$1.2 million expensed during the nine months ended September 30, 2008 related to software that is no longer being used.

26

Form 10-Q Part I Cincinnati Bell Inc.

#### **WIRELESS**

	Three	Months E	nded Septemb	er 30,	Nine	Months En	ded Septeml	oer 30,
(dollars in millions, except for operating metrics)	2008	2007	\$ Change 9	6 Change	2008	2007	\$ Change	% Change
Revenue:								
Service	\$ 74.2	\$ 68.2	\$ 6.0	9%	\$ 218.5	\$ 197.9	\$ 20.6	10%
Equipment	6.6	6.9	(0.3)	(4)%	19.1	19.2	(0.1)	(1)%
Total revenue	80.8	75.1	5.7	8%	237.6	217.1	20.5	9%
Operating costs and expenses:								
Cost of services and products	41.7	39.9	1.8	5%	122.3	112.0	10.3	9%
Selling, general and administrative	18.6	16.6	2.0	12%	52.2	50.2	2.0	4%
Depreciation	8.2	8.8	(0.6)	(7)%	24.7	25.8	(1.1)	(4)%
Amortization	0.5	0.8	(0.3)	(38)%	1.6	2.3	(0.7)	(30)%
Restructuring charges	0.1		0.1	n/m	0.5		0.5	n/m
Total operating costs and expenses	69.1	66.1	3.0	5%	201.3	190.3	11.0	6%
Operating income	\$ 11.7	\$ 9.0	\$ 2.7	30%	\$ 36.3	\$ 26.8	\$ 9.5	35%
Operating margin	14.5%	12.0%	6	2.5 pts	15.3%	12.3%	6	3.0 pts
Operating metrics								
Postpaid ARPU*	\$ 48.82	\$ 47.41	\$ 1.41	3%	\$ 47.91	\$ 46.75	\$ 1.16	2%
Prepaid ARPU*	\$ 26.33	\$ 22.96	\$ 3.37	15%	\$ 26.92	\$ 23.45	\$ 3.47	15%
Capital expenditures	\$ 9.7	\$ 11.0	\$ (1.3)	(12)%	\$ 33.7	\$ 23.8	\$ 9.9	42%

The Company has presented certain information regarding monthly average revenue per user (ARPU) because the Company believes ARPU provides a useful measure of the operational performance of its Wireless segment. ARPU is calculated by dividing service revenue by the average subscriber base for the period.

# Revenue

Service revenue increased by \$6.0 million in the third quarter of 2008 as compared to last year primarily due to the following:

Postpaid service revenue increased \$5.1 million due to an increase in subscribers. Postpaid subscribers increased 6% from 391,000 subscribers at September 30, 2007 to 414,000 at September 30, 2008. Net postpaid subscribers of 4,000 were added during the third quarter of 2008 compared to net additions of 8,000 subscribers in the third quarter of 2007. The Company continues to add subscribers due to a combination of attractive rate plans, extensive retail distribution, and network performance. The average monthly churn increased to 2.3% for the third quarter of 2008 compared to 1.7% in the third quarter of 2007. The increase in churn is due to increased competition and Company-initiated disconnections of customers with credit problems.

Prepaid service revenue increased \$0.9 million compared to the same period last year primarily due to the increase in ARPU of \$3.37. The number of prepaid subscribers at September 30, 2008 was 153,000, down from 166,000 prepaid subscribers at September 30, 2007. The Company has focused its marketing on higher usage rate plans, which has driven higher ARPU but led to the decrease in the number of prepaid subscribers.

For the nine months ended September 30, 2008, service revenue increased \$20.6 million compared to the same period in 2007 primarily due to a \$16.0 million increase in postpaid revenue resulting from an increase in both subscribers and ARPU. The ARPU increase includes a 26% increase in data revenue. Prepaid service revenue increased \$4.6 million primarily due to higher ARPU.

Equipment revenue was relatively flat for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2008 compared to last year.

27

Form 10-Q Part I Cincinnati Bell Inc.

#### **Costs and Expenses**

Cost of services and products consists largely of network operation costs, interconnection expenses with other telecommunications providers, roaming expense (which is incurred for subscribers to use their handsets in the territories of other wireless service providers), and cost of handsets and accessories sold. These expenses increased \$1.8 million during the third quarter of 2008 and \$10.3 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2008 versus the prior year periods. The increase for the three month and nine month periods was primarily attributable to a \$1.7 million and \$8.5 million increase in network costs, respectively, due to a higher number of subscribers and increased usage per subscriber. The remaining cost increase for the nine month period was primarily due to increased handset subsidies related to a higher number of postpaid activations and for retention of existing customers.

Selling, general and administrative expenses increased \$2.0 million for both the three and nine months ended September 30, 2008 compared to the same periods in 2007. The increase in the third quarter was primarily due to a \$1.0 million increase in bad debt expense and higher commissions as a result of a higher number of activations. Costs for the nine months ended September 30, 2008 increased \$2.0 million due to a \$1.3 million increase in bad debt expense and an increase in both commissions and consulting fees offset by lower advertising of \$0.6 million.

#### **TECHNOLOGY SOLUTIONS**

	Three Months Ended September 30,			Nine Months Ended September 30,				
(dollars in millions)	2008	2007	\$ Change	% Change	2008	2007	\$ Change	% Change
Revenue:								
Telecom and IT equipment distribution	\$ 43.1	\$ 52.9	\$ (9.8)	(19)%	\$ 142.9	\$ 125.0	\$ 17.9	14%
Data center and managed services	25.6	18.4	7.2	39%	72.2	48.2	24.0	50%
Professional services	4.6	2.8	1.8	64%	11.4	6.9	4.5	65%
Total revenue	73.3	74.1	(0.8)	(1)%	226.5	180.1	46.4	26%
Operating costs and expenses:								
Cost of services and products	53.4	59.5	(6.1)	(10)%	171.7	143.2	28.5	20%
Selling, general and administrative	9.8	7.0	2.8	40%	29.7	20.1	9.6	48%
Depreciation	3.9	1.8	2.1	n/m	10.2	4.3	5.9	n/m
Amortization	0.4	0.1	0.3	n/m	1.2	0.3	0.9	n/m
Restructuring				n/m	0.4		0.4	n/m
Total operating costs and expenses	67.5	68.4	(0.9)	(1)%	213.2	167.9	45.3	27%
Operating income	\$ 5.8	\$ 5.7	\$ 0.1	2%	\$ 13.3	\$ 12.2	\$ 1.1	9%
Operating margin	7.9%	7.7%		0.2 pts	5.9%	6.8%		(0.9) pts
Capital expenditures	\$ 23.1	\$ 30.2	\$ (7.1)	(24)%	\$ 55.7	\$ 59.2	\$ (3.5)	(6)%
The Technology Solutions segment consis	ete of Cincing	oti Ball Ta	achnology S	olutions Inc. (	CRTS ) and	GramTal I	ne ( GramT	al ) which we

The Technology Solutions segment consists of Cincinnati Bell Technology Solutions Inc. ( CBTS ) and GramTel Inc. ( GramTel ), which was purchased on December 31, 2007.

#### Revenue

Revenue from telecom and IT equipment distribution represents the sale, installation and maintenance of major, branded IT and telephony equipment. Revenue decreased by \$9.8 million in the third quarter of 2008 and increased by \$17.9 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2008 as compared to the same periods a year ago. The decrease in the third quarter of 2008 was primarily due to lower telephony and IT equipment sales. The increase for the nine months ending September 30, 2008 was due to increased telephony and IT equipment sales of \$18.7 million partially offset by lower installation and maintenance services.

Data center and managed services revenue consists of recurring collocation payments from customers residing in the Company s data centers, managed VoIP solutions, and IT services that include network management, electronic data storage, disaster recovery, and data security management. Revenue increased \$7.2 million for the third quarter of 2008 and \$24.0 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2008 as compared to the same periods a year ago primarily due to increased product penetration within managed services and increased billable data center space. Data center billed utilization was 88% on approximately 202,000 square feet of data center capacity at September 30, 2008, which includes 22,000 square feet of data center capacity obtained through the acquisition of GramTel, compared to billed utilization of 84% on approximately 135,000 square feet of data center capacity at September 30, 2007. The Company intends to continue to pursue additional customers and growth in its data center business, for which the Company is prepared to commit resources, including capital expenditures and working capital, to support this growth.

Form 10-Q Part I Cincinnati Bell Inc.

Professional services revenue consists of long-term and short-term IT outsourcing and consulting engagements. Revenue for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2008 increased by \$1.8 million and \$4.5 million compared to the same periods in 2007. The Company has expanded its team of recruiting and hiring personnel in order to focus on selling these outsourcing and consulting engagements.

#### **Costs and Expenses**

Cost of services and products decreased by \$6.1 million in the third quarter of 2008 and increased by \$28.5 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2008 as compared to the same periods in 2007. The decrease in the third quarter primarily resulted from a \$9.5 million decrease in cost of goods sold related to the sale of telephony and IT equipment. This decrease was partially offset by a \$3.9 million increase for higher payroll related costs due to growth in the data center and managed services and professional services revenue, increased data center facilities costs and the acquisition of GramTel. The increase for the nine months ending September 30, 2008 was primarily due to a \$15.6 million increase in cost of goods sold related to the increase in telephony and IT equipment sales, a \$10.0 million increase for higher payroll related costs due to growth in the data center and managed services and professional services revenue, increased data center facilities costs and the acquisition of GramTel.

Selling, general and administrative expenses increased by \$2.8 million and \$9.6 million for the third quarter of 2008 and the nine months ended September 30, 2008, respectively. The increase in the third quarter primarily resulted from an increase in labor and employee related costs of \$2.0 million to support the growing operations and the acquisition of GramTel. The increase for the nine months ending September 30, 2008 was primarily due to a \$6.3 million increase in labor and employee related costs to support the growing operations, higher operating taxes and the acquisition of GramTel.

The increase in depreciation expense for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2008 compared to the three and nine months ended September 30, 2007 was primarily due to capital expenditures associated with expanding data center capacity.

The increase in amortization expense resulted from the allocation of a portion of the purchase price to the customer relationship intangible asset associated with the GramTel acquisition in December 2007.

#### Financial Condition, Liquidity, and Capital Resources

As of September 30, 2008, the Company held \$8.0 million in cash and cash equivalents. The Company s primary sources of cash for the remainder of 2008 will be cash generated by operations and borrowings from the Corporate credit facility under which the Company had \$142.9 million of availability at September 30, 2008. The Company believes the cash generated by its operations and borrowings from its Corporate credit facility are sufficient to fund its primary uses of cash.

In 2008, the Company expects to spend approximately 16% of 2008 revenue on capital expenditures (revenue for 2008 is expected to be approximately \$1.4 billion). Other uses of cash for the remainder of 2008 will include repayments of debt and related interest, dividends on the 6³/4% Cumulative Convertible Preferred Stock, and working capital. The Company may seek to retire or purchase our outstanding debt through cash purchases in open market transactions, privately negotiated transactions or otherwise. Such repurchases, if any, will depend on prevailing market conditions, our liquidity requirements, contractual restrictions and other factors. The amounts involved may be material. Additionally, in February 2008, the Company s Board of Directors approved the repurchase of up to \$150 million of the Company s outstanding common stock over the period 2008 through 2009, of which \$67.5 million was purchased during the nine months ended September 30, 2008.

The Corporate credit facility financial covenants require that the Company maintain certain leverage ratios, interest coverage, and fixed charge ratios. The facility also contains certain covenants which, among other things, limit the Company s ability to incur additional debt or liens, pay dividends, repurchase Company common stock, sell, transfer, lease, or dispose of assets, and make investments or merge with another company. If the Company were to violate any of its covenants and was unable to obtain a waiver, it would be considered a default. If the Company were in default under its credit facilities, no additional borrowings under the credit facilities would be available until the default was waived or cured or if the default is not waived or cured, the outstanding indebtedness would become due and payable. The Company is in compliance and expects to remain in compliance with its Corporate credit facility covenants.

Form 10-Q Part I Cincinnati Bell Inc.

The Company s public debt, which includes the \*\frac{\psi\_4\%}\$ Senior Notes due 2013 ( \frac{\psi\_4\%}\$ Notes due 2013 ), \frac{\psi\_8\%}\$ Senior Subordinated Notes due 2014 ( \frac{\psi\_8\%}\$ Notes ), and the 7\% Notes due 2015 ( 7\% Notes ), contain covenants that, among other things, limit the Company s ability to incur additional debt or liens, pay dividends or make other restricted payments, sell, transfer, lease, or dispose of assets and make investments or merge with another company. Restricted payments include common stock dividends, repurchase of common stock, and certain other public debt repayments. The Company currently has sufficient ability under its public debt indentures to make its intended restricted payments in 2008. The Company is in compliance and expects to remain in compliance with its public debt indentures.

#### **Cash Flows**

For the nine months ended September 30, 2008, cash provided by operating activities totaled \$266.3 million, an increase of \$57.0 million compared to the \$209.3 million provided by operating activities during the same period in 2007. The increase was primarily due to a customer prepayment of \$21.5 million for data center services and approximately \$40 million due to lower payments for both interest and operating taxes.

Cash flow utilized for investing activities increased \$21.6 million to \$179.3 million during the nine months ended September 30, 2008 as compared to \$157.7 million for the nine months of 2007. For the nine months ended September 30, 2008, the Company paid \$21.6 million related to the acquisition of businesses, \$18.1 million of which related to the purchase of eGIX. In 2007, the Company purchased a local telecommunication business and paid \$4.6 million. Capital expenditures were \$6.3 million higher for the nine months ended September 30, 2008 versus last year.

Cash flow used in financing activities for the nine months ended September 30, 2008 was \$105.1 million compared to \$103.7 million during the same period in 2007. For the nine months ended September 30, 2008, the Company used cash flows from operations to purchase and extinguish \$50.6 million of 8 ³/8 % Notes and 7 ¹/4% Notes due 2013 and to repurchase \$67.5 million of the Company s common stock as part of its two-year \$150 million common stock repurchase plan. Borrowings under the Corporate credit facility increased \$25.0 million during the nine months ended September 30, 2008. During the nine months ended September 30, 2007, the Company repaid \$180 million of the Tranche B Term Loan, utilizing \$75 million from borrowings under the accounts receivables securitization facility. Also in the third quarter of 2007, the Company repaid \$26.4 million of the 7 ¹/4% Senior Notes due 2013 and borrowed \$40 million on the Corporate credit facility. For the nine months ended September 30, 2008 and 2007, the Company paid preferred stock dividends of \$7.8 million.

### **Contingencies**

In the normal course of business, the Company is subject to various regulatory and tax proceedings, lawsuits, claims and other matters. The Company believes adequate provision has been made for all such asserted and unasserted claims in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States. Such matters are subject to many uncertainties and outcomes that are not predictable with assurance.

#### Anthem Demutualization Claim

In November 2007, a class action complaint was filed against the Company and Wellpoint Inc., formerly known as Anthem, Inc. The complaint alleges that the Company improperly received stock as a result of the demutualization of Anthem and that a class of insured persons should have received the stock instead. In February 2008, the Company filed a response in which it denied all liability and raised a number of defenses. In October 2008, the plaintiffs amended their complaint to include additional claims against Wellpoint Inc., but not the Company. In response, the Company filed a notice to dismiss the amended complaint. The court has not yet ruled on the Company s motion. The Company believes that it has meritorious defenses and intends to vigorously defend this action. The Company does not currently believe this claim will have a material effect on its financial condition.

Form 10-Q Part I Cincinnati Bell Inc.

#### Other

Labor Contract

On January 31, 2008, the Company and the Communication Workers of America (CWA) reached a tentative agreement on a new labor contract. The new agreement, which covers approximately 1,300 members of the CWA locals 4400 and 4401, was ratified by the local CWA membership on February 27, 2008 and includes the following:

Retains the current call center work as local Cincinnati jobs, restructures base pay for the call center employees and implements a sales commission plan for eligible call center employees;

Creates a new wage, benefit and working condition agreement for bargaining unit employees hired on or after February 1, 2008;

Provides a cumulative 4.5 percent wage increase over the three years of the contract;

Maintains current healthcare plan designs with modest premium increases over the life of the contract, reflective of healthcare inflation;

Improves dental coverage by increasing the amounts covered under the plan for restorative services;

Increases pay-related pension credits by 3%; and

Offers an early retirement option to eligible bargaining unit employees.

Pension Asset Performance

Due to the current credit and financial market crisis, the Company s pension plan assets have incurred a loss of approximately 15% from December 31, 2007 through September 30, 2008. Subsequent to September 30, 2008 through the date of this filing, the valuations of equity and fixed income securities have continued to decline. Pending the measurement of the pension and postretirement plans, which generally occurs annually at the end of each year, and adjusting for the actual asset returns in the fourth quarter of 2008, the Company expects an increase to the December 31, 2008 unfunded status of its pension plans as compared to December 31, 2007, and an increase to its pension plan funding and pension expense for future years.

For further discussion on the Company s accounting for pension and postretirement expenses and liabilities, see Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates included in Item 7 Management s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations of the Company s 2007 Annual Report on Form 10-K.

### Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk

The Company is exposed to the impact of interest rate fluctuations on its indebtedness. The Company attempts to maintain an optimal balance of fixed rate and variable rate indebtedness in order to attain low overall borrowing costs over time while mitigating exposure to interest rate fluctuations. The Company uses derivative financial instruments to manage its balance of fixed rate and variable rate indebtedness. In 2004 and

2005, the Company entered into long-term interest rate swaps with notional amounts totaling \$450 million to change the fixed rate nature of a portion of the 7% Notes and the 8 <sup>3</sup>/<sub>8</sub> Notes to floating rate debt (long-term interest rate swaps). These long-term interest rate swaps qualify for fair value hedge accounting. As of September 30, 2008 and December 31, 2007, the fair value of these interest rate swap contracts was an asset of \$4.8 million and \$2.9 million, respectively, for which the Company s underlying hedged debt is adjusted by the same corresponding value in accordance with SFAS No. 133.

In May 2008, the Company entered into six-month interest rate swap contracts with notional amounts totaling \$450 million, which effectively fixed the floating interest rates for the second half of 2008 on the long-term interest rate swaps. The Company did not designate these swaps as hedging instruments under SFAS No. 133, which results in the change in the fair value of these instruments being recognized in earnings during each period. At September 30, 2008, the fair value of these interest rate swap contracts was an asset of \$0.2 million with the corresponding value included in Other expense (income), net in the Condensed Consolidated Statements of Operations.

In July 2008, the Company entered into additional six-month interest rate swap contracts with notional amounts totaling \$450 million, which effectively fixed the floating interest rates in the first half of 2009, on the long-term interest rate swaps. The Company elected not to designate these swaps as hedging instruments under SFAS No. 133, which results in the change in the fair value of these instruments being recognized in earnings during each period. At September 30, 2008, the fair value of these interest rate swap contracts was a liability of \$0.1 million with the corresponding value included in Other expense (income), net in the Condensed Consolidated Statements of Operations.

Refer to the Company s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2007 for further information on the Company s hedging activities.

31

Form 10-Q Part I Cincinnati Bell Inc.

#### Item 4. Controls and Procedures

#### (a) Evaluation of disclosure controls and procedures.

The term disclosure controls and procedures (defined in SEC Rule 13a-15(e)) refers to the controls and other procedures of a company that are designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed by a company in the reports that it files under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the Exchange Act ) is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within required time periods. Disclosure controls and procedures include, without limitation, controls and procedures designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed by the Company in the reports that it files under the Exchange Act is accumulated and communicated to management, including the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure. Cincinnati Bell Inc. s management, with the participation of the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, have evaluated the effectiveness of the Company s disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the period covered by the report. Based on that evaluation, Cincinnati Bell Inc. s Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer have concluded that, as of the end of the period covered by the report, such controls and procedures were effective.

#### (b) Changes in internal controls over financial reporting.

The term internal control over financial reporting (defined in SEC Rule 13a-15(f)) refers to the process of a company that is designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States. Cincinnati Bell Inc. s management, with the participation of the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, have evaluated any changes in the Company s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the third quarter of 2008, and they have concluded that there was no change to Cincinnati Bell Inc. s internal control over financial reporting in the third quarter of 2008 that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, Cincinnati Bell Inc. s internal control over financial reporting.

Form 10-Q Part II Cincinnati Bell Inc.

#### PART II. OTHER INFORMATION

### Item 1. Legal Proceedings

The information required by this Item is incorporated herein by reference to the Contingencies section under Item 2 of Part I of this Quarterly Report.

#### Item 1A. Risk Factors

The Company provided its risk factors in its 2007 Annual Report on Form 10-K. The Company believes the following additional risk factor results from the current credit and financial market crisis:

The current credit and financial market conditions may exacerbate certain risks affecting the Company and its business.

As widely reported, financial markets in the United States, Europe and Asia have been experiencing extreme disruption in recent months, including, among other things, extreme volatility in security prices, severely diminished liquidity and credit availability, rating downgrades of certain investments and declining valuations of others. Governments have taken unprecedented actions intended to address extreme market conditions that include severely restricted credit and declines in real estate values. The Company believes the current credit and financial market conditions could adversely affect its operations in several ways:

While the Company does not have any significant debt maturities until its corporate revolving credit facility expires in February 2010, these adverse economic conditions could impair the Company s ability to access credit markets if financing is required by the Company.

The current tightening of credit in financial markets adversely affects the ability of customers, both business and consumer, to obtain appropriate financing and could result in a cancellation of, a decrease in, or inability to pay for orders for the Company s products and services.

The Company s suppliers are also adversely affected, and the lack of appropriate financing to fund key supplier operations could lead to a shortage or cancellation of key supplier products and services, which could have an adverse effect on the Company s operations.

The Company s Corporate credit facility is funded by a consortium of banks and the Company s interest rate swaps are entered into with counterparties that have been adversely affected by the current credit and financial market conditions. If one or more of these banks or counterparties were not able to fulfill its funding obligations, the Company s financial condition could be adversely affected. The Company has mitigated its risks as its Corporate credit facility is funded by 16 different financial institutions, with no financial institution having more than 10% of the total facility. The Company s counterparty exposure related to the interest rate swaps is limited to the unrealized gains on the interest rate swaps, which totaled \$4.9 million at September 30, 2008, and realized gains not yet received.

The Company s pension plan investment assets have decreased 15% in value from December 31, 2007 through September 30, 2008. Subsequent to September 30, 2008 through the date of this filing, the valuations of equity and fixed income securities have continued to decline. These losses and any future losses could negatively impact the level of pension funding required by the Company in future years, the amount of pension expense to be recorded in the future, and the level of shareowners deficit. Additionally, under current accounting rules, these losses are not reflected in the Company s financial condition until measured at year-end.

The Company is unable to predict the likely duration and severity of the current disruption in financial markets and adverse economic conditions in the U.S. and other countries.

33

Form 10-Q Part II Cincinnati Bell Inc.

### Item 2. Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds

During the three month period ended September 30, 2008, the Company had no unregistered sales of equity securities.

The following table provides information regarding the Company s purchases of its common stock for the quarter ended September 30, 2008:

	Total Number of Shares (or Units) Purchased	Average Price Paid per Share (or Unit)	Total Number of Shares (or Units) Purchased as Part of Publicly Announced Plans or Programs *	Approximate Dollar Value of Shares that May Yet Be Purchased Under the Plans or Programs (in millions) *	
7/1/2008-7/31/2008	2,277,585	\$ 4.06	2,277,585	\$ 93.7	
8/1/2008-8/31/2008	1,248,743	\$ 3.96	1,248,743	88.8	
9/1/2008-9/30/2008	1,775,030	\$ 3.56	1,775,030	82.5	

<sup>\*</sup> In February 2008, the Company s Board of Directors approved the repurchase of the Company s outstanding common stock in an amount up to \$150 million during 2008 and 2009.

# Item 3. Defaults Upon Senior Securities

None.

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

None.

Item 5. Other Information

None.

34

Form 10-Q Part II Cincinnati Bell Inc.

#### Item 6. Exhibits

# (a) Exhibits.

Exhibits identified in parentheses below, on file with the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC), are incorporated herein by reference as exhibits hereto.

Exhibit Number (10.1)	<b>DESCRIPTION</b> Third Amendment to the Credit Agreement, dated as of August 12, 2008, among Cincinnati Bell Inc. as Borrower, the Guarantors signatories thereto, the Lenders party thereto, Bank of America, N.A. as Administrative Agent and Lender, and PNC Bank, National Association, as Swingline Lender (Exhibit 99.1 to Current Report on Form 8-K, date of Report August 12, 2008, File No. 1-8519).
(31.1)+	Certification pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
(31.2)+	Certification pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
(32.1)+	Certification pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
(32.2)+	Certification pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

### Filed herewith.

The Company s reports on Form 10-K, 10-Q, and 8-K are available free of charge in the Investor Relations section of the Company s website: <a href="http://www.cincinnatibell.com">http://www.cincinnatibell.com</a>. The Company will furnish any other exhibit at cost.

# **Table of Contents**

Form 10-Q Part II Cincinnati Bell Inc.

# **SIGNATURES**

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

Cincinnati Bell Inc.

Date: October 31, 2008 /s/ Gary Wojtaszek

Gary Wojtaszek

Chief Financial Officer

Date: October 31, 2008 /s/ Kurt Freyberger

Kurt Freyberger

Vice President and Controller

36